Before the

Administrative Hearing Commission

State of Missouri

MISSOURI HIGHWAYS AND 
)

TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION, 
)



)



Petitioner,
)




)


vs.

)

No. 08-2026 MC



)

ADAMS LANDSCAPING, INC.,
)




)



Respondent.
)

DECISION 


Adams Landscaping, Inc. (“Adams”) violated a federal regulation.  

Procedure


The Missouri Highways and Transportation Commission (“the MHTC”) filed a complaint on December 3, 2008.  Adams was served with a copy of the complaint and our notice of complaint/notice of hearing by certified mail on December 29, 2008.  Adams did not file an answer to the complaint.  


On March 18, 2009, the MHTC filed a motion for summary decision.  Our Regulation     1 CSR 15-3.446(5) provides that we may decide this case without a hearing if the MHTC establishes facts that (a) Adams does not dispute and (b) entitle the MHTC to a favorable decision.


We gave Adams until April 6, 2009, to respond to the motion, but it did not respond.   Adams is in default for failing to answer the MHTC’s complaint and is deemed to have admitted the facts asserted therein.
  Further, by failing to respond to the MHTC’s motion, which is supported by an affidavit and exhibits setting forth material facts, Adams has failed to raise any genuine issue as to any fact.
  Therefore, the following facts as established by the MHTC are undisputed.   
Findings of Fact


1.  Adams is a Missouri corporation with a terminal at 15606 Debridge Way in Florissant, Missouri.    

2.  On January 11, 2008, Adams’ driver, Benny Williams, operated a 1994 GMC truck, with a gross vehicle weight rating (“GVWR”) of 45,000 pounds, under the control of Adams.  Williams operated the GMC truck in intrastate commerce transporting property (mulch) from    St. Louis, Missouri, to Pevely, Missouri, before Adams had implemented an alcohol and/or controlled substances testing program.
  
Conclusions of Law


We have jurisdiction to hear the MHTC’s complaint.
  The MHTC must show by clear and satisfactory evidence that Adams has violated the law.
 

The MHTC has the authority to enforce Part 382 of Title 49 of the Code of Federal Regulations.
   Regulation 49 CFR § 382.107 defines “commercial motor vehicle” and “employer”:

Commercial motor vehicle means a motor vehicle or combination of motor vehicles used in commerce to transport passengers or property if the vehicle--

*   *   * 

(2) Has a gross vehicle weight rating of 11,794 or more kilograms (26,001 or more pounds)[.]

*   *   *

Employer means a person or entity employing one or more employees (including an individual who is self-employed) that is subject to DOT agency regulations requiring compliance with this part.  The term, as used in this part, means the entity responsible for overall implementation of DOT drug and alcohol program requirements, including individuals employed by the entity who take personnel actions resulting from violations of this part and any applicable DOT agency regulations.  Service agents are not employers for the purposes of this part.

Because the GMC truck had a GVWR of 45,000 pounds and was used in commerce to transport property, it is a commercial motor vehicle.  Because Williams was driving for Adams, Adams was an employer as defined in the regulation.

Regulation 49 CFR § 382.115(a) provides:

All domestic-domiciled employers must implement the requirements of this part on the date the employer begins commercial motor vehicle operations.

Part 382 of Title 49 CFR establishes the employer’s duty to implement an alcohol or controlled substance testing program, while Part 40 sets forth specific procedures and forms to be used in 
the program.  Because Adams did not have an alcohol and controlled substance testing program in place on January 11, 2008, Adams violated 49 CFR § 382.115(a).  

Summary


Adams violated 49 CFR § 382.115(a) by failing to have an alcohol and controlled substance testing program in place.  We cancel the hearing.  


SO ORDERED on April 28, 2009.



________________________________



JOHN J. KOPP  



Commissioner

�ITT Commercial Fin. Corp. v. Mid-Am. Marine Supply Corp., 854 S.W.2d 371, 380-82 (Mo. banc 1993).  


	�Regulation 1 CSR 15-3.380(1) and (7)(C)1.  


	�Regulation 1 CSR 15-3.446(5)(B).  


	�In addition to Adams’ failure to answer the MHTC’s complaint, a company vice president admitted in a signed statement dated March 12, 2008, that on January 11, 2008, Adams did not have an alcohol and/or controlled substances testing program in place.  The signed statement is authenticated as an exhibit and attached to the MHTC’s motion.  


	�Sections 621.040 and 226.008.4.  Statutory references are to RSMo Supp. 2008, unless otherwise noted.  


	�Section 622.350.


	�Section 226.008.2(1) and §§ 390.201 and 622.550, RSMo 2000.
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